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Statement of management's responsibilities for the preparation and
approval of the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial poswion of Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company (the "Bank")
(Formerly: Open jJoint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC) as at 31 December 2018, the results of
1ts operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended, in accordance with Internatonal
Fmancial Reporting Standards ("1FRS™).

In preparing the financial statements, management 1s responsible for:

s Properly sclecting and applying accoununy policies,

* Presenting information, including accounung policies, i a manner that provides relevant, rebable,
comparable and understandable informauon;

¢ Providing additional disclosures when compliance with the speaific requirements in IFRSs are
wsufficient to enable users to understand the impact of parucular transactions, other events and
conditions on the Bank's financial position and financial performance; and

¢ Making an assessment of the Bank's ability to conunuc as a going concern.

Management is also responsible for:

* Designing, implementing and maintaining an effecuve and sound systern of internal controls,
throughour the Bank;

* Maintaiming proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any ume, the
financial position of the Bank, and which enable them to ensure thart the financial statements of the
Bank comply with IFRS;

* Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation and accounting standards
of the Republic of Azerbaijan;

¢ Taking such steps as are reasonably avatlable to them to safeguard the assets of the Bank; and

* Detectng and prevenung fraud, errors and other wrregulanties.

These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were approved by the Management
Board on 30 Apnl 2019 and were signed on their behalf by:

Aahir Ahmedov

Charman of Manag ;

Mahir Necefov \\_/ /

Chief Financial Officer
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Independent auditors' report
To the Shareholders of

Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financil statements of Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(the "Bank") (Formery: Open Joint Stock 1 'enture Silk Way Bank O]JSC), which comprise the statement of
financial positon as at 31 December 2018, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes o the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounung policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Bank as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Finaneial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audiung (ISAs). Our responsibilines
under those standards are further described m the Auditors” Respensibiliies for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with Internatonal Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional ‘Accountants (IESB.A Code), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinton.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparavon and fur presentation of the financial statements m
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines 1s necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s abaity to conunue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounung unless management cither intends to liguidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has
no realistic aliernative but to do so.

‘Those charged with governance are responsible for overseemng the Bank’s financial reporung process

Grant Thorron Azerbagan. a member omm of Grant Thomton intemadond Lid
Grant Thorrzon Internanonat and its mermer £1ins &re fot & weridweds partnanz:p Services e defivered incepondantly by tha moembar fms.

2



Independent auditors' report (continued)
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole arc
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot error, and 1o 1ssue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted 1n accordance with I1SAs will always detect a matenal musstatement when 1t exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 1 the
agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basts of these financial statements.

As part of an audit n accordance with I8\s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Idenufy and assess the nsks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or crror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nisks, and obtain audit
cvidence that 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nsk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulung from fraud 1s higher than for one resulung from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, mtentonal omissions, mistepresentatons, or the overnde of
internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
cffectiveness of the Bank’s internal control,

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matertal uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast sigmificant doubt on the Bank’s ability to conunuc as a goimng concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures 1n the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to conunue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentaton, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undeclying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentanon.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and uming of the audit and sigmificant audit findings, including any symificant deficiencies in
internal control that we idenufy during our audt.

e o
Grant Thornton

Balku, Republic of Azetbaijan
Date: 30 April 2019



Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC)
Financial Statements

Statermnent of financial position

As at 31 December 2018

{in thousands of Azerbaijan Manats)

Notes 2018 2017
AZN AEN
Assets
Cash and balances with Central Bank 3 53,302 48,140
Balances with other banks 1 10,459 12,580
Loans and advances to customers ) 552,127 393,630
Property and equipment o 4,184 3431
Intangible assets 724 448
Other assets 10 4,032 4,450
Total assets 624,828 462,679
Liabilities
Loans and depostts from banks and financial instituiions 11 40,810 109,951
Deposits from customers 12 466,111 242,055
Other liabilies 13 4,637 4,084
Toutal liabilities 511,558 356,090
Equity
Share capital 14 104,601 104,601
Reratned earnings 8,669 1,988
Total equity 113,270 106,589
Total equity and liabilities 624,828 462,679

These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were approved by the Management
Board on 30 Apnl 2019 and were signed on their behalf by:

Mahir Ahmedov /s
Chatrman of Managemegfig

Mahar Ncccfo&v E/
Chief Financial Officer

(4
Vigere o s

The accompanying notes 1 10 30 form an mntegral part of these financial statements.
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Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Sitk Way Bank OJS8C)
Financial Statements

Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(in thousands of Azerbaijan Manats)

Notes 2018 2017
AZN AZN

Interest income 15 37,556 27,803
Interest expense 15 (14,803) (18,751)
Net interest income 15 22,753 16,052
Reversal of /(Allowance for) impairment losses on loans and
advances to customers 8.1 5,867 7,214
Net interest income after teversal of /(allowance for)
impairment losses 28,620 8,838
Gans from foreign exchange operatons - net 16 7,334 9,083
[Fees and commission income 17 14,204 9,495
[Fees and commussion expense 18 (3,890) {2,605)
Operating profit 46,268 24,811
Other {¢xpense)/income - net 19 (60) 36
Depreciation and amortization expense 20 {769 (570)
Admunistrative and general expenses 21 (29,764) 22,139)
Profit for the year before tax 15,675 2,138
Income tax expense 22 (2,992) (539)
Profit for the year 12,683 1,599
Other comprehensive income = 5
Total comprehensive income for the year 12,683 1,599
Earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Bank, basic and diluted (expressed in AZN per share) 29 18.68 235

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC)

Financial Statements

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018

{in thousands of .Azerbayan Manats)

Balance at 1 Januvary 2017

Issue of share capial

Transacttons with owners

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive ncome

Balance at 31 December 2017
Impact of adopang IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018

(Refer to note 4.4 and note 4.24.1)
Restated balance at 1 fanuary 2018

Dividend pad

Transacuons with owners

Profit for the year

Total comprehenstve income

Balance at 31 December 2018

Share Retained Total
capital earnings equity
AZN AZN AZN
101,545 3445 104,990
3,056 (3,056) :
3,056 (3.056) -
- 1,599 1,599

- 1,599 1,599
104,601 1,988 106,589
3 (4,102) (4,102)
104,601 (2,114) 102,487
- {1,900) (1,900)
- (1,900) (1,900)

- 12,683 12,683

- 12,683 M2 63

P
104,601 8,669 113,270

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC)

Financial Statements

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018
{in thousands of .\zerbayan Manats)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for non-cash and non-operating items:
DCPI’CCIRUOI’I and amorusation cipense

Loss on dispasal of property and equipment

Reversal of/ (Allowance for) impairment losses on balances

with other banks

Reversal of/ (Allowance for) impairment losses on loans
and advances to customers

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Mandatory minumum reserve deposits with Central Bank
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Depostts from customers

Other habiliues

Cash from operations

Income tax pad

Net cash generated from operating acavities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Sales proceed from disposal of property and equipment

Met cash used 1n investung acuvities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans and deposits from banks and financial insututions
Dividend pad

Met cash used in financing acuvites

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Notes 2018 2017
AZN AZN
15,675 2,138
2} 769 570
86
7 D 81
8.1 (5,867) 7.214
10,662 10,003
(2,305) (3849
(156,732) {37,103)
a7 (990
224,056 71914
(496) 2,571
75,008 46,011
(1,943) {539)
73,065 45472
{1,576} (1,629)
(335) (193)
27 -
{1,884) (1,824)
(69,141) (3,937)
{1,900) _
(71,041) (5,937
140 37,711
59,652 21,941
[ 59,792 59,652

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial starements.




Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC)
Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(in thousands of ‘Azerbayjan Manats)

1 Legal status and nature of operations

Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company (the "Bank") (Formerfi: Open Joint Stock Venture Selle Way Band:
OJSC} was established on 6 January 1994 and held license no. 175 for commereial banking 1ssued Central
Bank of Azerbayan Republic (CBAR or Central Bank). The acuvities of the Bank are regulated by the
Financmal Markets Supervisory Authonty (the “FIMSA™) s at 31 Decemnber 2018 the registered address
of the Bank is located Hasan Aliyev Street 1317, AZ 1110, Baku, \zerbatjan Republic.

The poneipal acuvity of the Bank 1s providing commereial banking services to legal entites and physical
persons. The Bank has five branches and one service point. The Bank operates a network of 51 (2017: 50)
automatic teller machines. The Bank has 175 employees (2017: 163 employees) as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the following sharcholders owned the 1ssued share capital of the bank

2018 2017

% %o

Legal entity 15.22 30.00
[ndividuals 84.78 70.00
100.00 100.00

During the current year bank sharcholding has changed. Miss. Zanfa Hamzayeva acquired 14.78% from
VIP Aviation Services LLC resulung into total holding of 84.47% by her. Whereas, Miss Ahmedova
Elvira Ismayil and VIP Aviation Services LLC holds 0.31% and 15.22% respectvely.

2 Statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)

These financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporung Standards (IFRS) as issued by the Intematonal Accountng Standards Board (1.ASB).
Additonal informaton required by CBAR and FIMSA Regulations is included where approprate.
Further the accounting policies applied 1n the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with
those applied 1n the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, except for changes in
accounting policies explaned 1 note 4.4 and changes in management judgement and estumates explained
in note 4.24.1.

3 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards

3.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are
effective in 2018

Following rclevant new standards, revisions and amendments to existing standards were 1ssued by the
[ASB, which are effective for the accounung period beginning on or after | January 2018 and have been
adopted by the Bank:

Standard number  Title Effective date
IFRS 9 Financal Instruments (refer 10 note 4.4 and note 4.24.1) 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Jomt Ventures 1 January 2018



Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC)
Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(in thousands of Azerbayjan Manats)

3 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards (continued)

3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not
yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Bank

At the date of authonsanon of these financial statements, the following relevant new standards,
interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published but are not yer effective and
have not been adopted carly by the Bank. Informauon on the relevant new standards, amendments and
micrpretations that are not yet effective has been provided below.

Effective for

New standards and significant amendments to standards: annual periods
beginning on or
after
IFRs 16, leases. The TASB 1ssued the new standard for accounung for leases. 1 January 2019

() The new standard does not significantly change the accounting for leases for
lessors. However, it does require lessees 1o recognise most leases on the balance
sheets as lease habilities, with the corresponding right-of-use assets.

(b) Lessees must apply a single model for all recogmised leases but will have the
option not to recognise ‘shortterm’ leases and leases of *low-value’ assets.

(¢} Generally, the profit or loss recognition pattern for recogmsed leases will be
similar to today’s finance lease accounung, with merest and depreciation
expense recognised separately in the statement of profit or loss.

Early application 1s permitted provided the new revenue standard, 1FRS 15, is
applied on the same date. Lesseces must adopt IFRS 16 vsing either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospecuve approach. Management has yet to
assess the impact of this revised standard on the Bank’s financial statements.
\nnual Improvements to IFRS 2015-2017 Cycle amending [FRS 3, 1FRS 1, I January 2019
[AS 12 and 1AS 23

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: The interpretation 1 January 2019
addresses the determinaton of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax

losses, unused tax eredits and tax rates, when there is uncertanty over income

tax treatments under 1AS 12, [t specifically considers:

Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;

Assumpuons for taxaton authorities' examinatons;

The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates and the effect of changes in facts and
circumstances.

Amendments in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments relaung to prepayment features i Januvary 2019
with negatve compensation. This amends the extsung requirements in [FRS 9

regarding tenmination rights m order to allow measurement at amortsed cost

(or, depending on the business model, at far value through other

comprchensive income) even in the case of negative compensauon payments.

Amendment 1o LAS 19 Employee Benefits: The amendments clanfy that: 1 January 2019

on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company
now uses updated acruarial assumptions to determine 1ts current service cost
and net interest for the period and the effect of the asset cetling 1s disregarded
when calculatng the gan or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with
separately in other comprehensive income.




Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC)
Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

{in thousands of Azerbaan Manats)

3 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards (continued)

3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not
yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Bank {(continued)

Effective for

New standards and significant amendments to standards: annual periods
beginning on or
after
Amendments 1n [AS 28 [nvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures relatng to 1 January 2019

long-term 1nterests n associates and joint ventures. These amendments clanfy
that an enuty applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in 1FRS Standards - 1 January 2020
amendments to [FRS 2, [FRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, LAS 8, LAS 34, [AS 37,
IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32 to update those
pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the framewortk or
to indicate where they refer to a different version of the Conceprual Framework.

Amendments to [FRS 10 Consolidated Fiancial Statements and 1AS 28 Effecuve date
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) relaung 1o the treatment of  deferred indefintely.
the sale or conribution of assets from and investor to 1ts associate or jomt Adopuon 1s sull
venture. permitted.

AManagement anticapates that all the relevant pronouncements will be adopted 1n the Bank's accounting
policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. The Bank's
management has yet to assess the impact of these changes on the Bank's financial statements.

4 Summary of significant accounting policies

4.1 Overall considerations

These financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified by iFRS for each
type of asset, liability, income and expense. There has been no significant reclasstfication or adjustments
in the comparauves. The measurement bases are more fully described i the aceounting policices below.

4.2 Basis of preparation

The accounting policics applied 1n the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those
applied in the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, except for changes in
accounting policies explaned 1n note 4.4 and changes in management judgement and estimates expluned
1n note 4.24.1.

The preparauon of the financial statements in conformuty with [FRS requires management to make
judgments, esumates and assumptions that affect the application of accountng policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabiliies, mcome and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estumates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accountng
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate 1s revised and i any future periods affecred.
Information about significant arcas of estimation uncertamnty and critical management judgments 1n
applying accounting policies and changes n estimaton uncertanty and cntical management judgments
that have the most sigmificant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described
m note 4.24 and 4.25.

o}



Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silkk Way Bank OJSC)
Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

{in thousands of Azerbayan Manats)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
4.3 Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

These financial starements are presented i Azerbayan Manar (VZN), which is also Bank's functional
currcncy.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactons arc translated into the functonal currency, using the exchange rates
prevaling at the dates of the transactons (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulung from the settlement of such transacuons and from the remcasurement of monetary items at
year-end exchange rates are recognised n statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the
ransaction (not retranslated). Non-monetary items measured at fair value are translated using the
cxchange rates at the dare when far value was determined. For the purpose of translaton of financial
assets and financial habilities denominated in foreign currencies the following year-end exchange rates
have been used:

2018 2017
AZN/1 USD 1.7000 1.7001
AZN/1 Euro 1.9468 2.0307
AZN/1 GBP 21529 2.2881
AZN/1 RUB 0.0245 0.0295

4.4 Changes in accounting policies - applicable from 1 January 2018

The Bank has consistently applied the accounting policies as set out in note 4.5 to note 4.25
to all peniods presented i these financial statements, exeept for the accountng policies as set out 1n
note +.4.1 and note 4.4.2 and judgements and estmates as set out in +.24.1. These changes are applicable
from 1 January 2018.

4.4.1 Financial instruments - applicable from 1 January 2018

The Bank has adopied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments sssued i July 2014 with a date of inital application
of 1 January 2018, The requirements of IFRS 9 represent a significant change from 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recogmtion and Measurement. The new standard brings fundamental changes to the
accounting for financial asscts and to certamn aspects of the accounting for financial Habilittes.

[FRS 9 also contains new requirements on the application of hedge accounting. The new requirements
look to align hedge accountng more closely with ennties” nisk management actvities by increasing the
chgibility of both hedged items and hedging istruments and mtroducing 2 more principles-based
approach to assessing hedge effecuveness.

1



Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC)
Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

{tn thousands of Azerbaijan Manats)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.4 Changes in accounting policies - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)
4.4.1 Financial instruments - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial habihities are recognised when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial strument and are measured mally at farr value plus transacuons costs.
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Bank commits to purchase or sell the assct.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assce
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are wansferred.

A financial liabiity 1s derecognised when 1t 1s extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expired.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured subsequently as deseribed below.

Classification and measurement
Financial assets

On minal recogmition, a financial asset 15 chssified as measured: at amortised cost, FFair Value through

Other Comprehenswve Income (FVOCT) or Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).

A financial asset 15 measured at amorused cost 1if 1t meets both the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

e the asset 1s held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold asscts to collect contracrual cash
flows; and

¢ the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

A debr instrument 15 measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and 1s not
designated as at F\'TPL:

¢ the asset 1s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collectung contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

® the contractual terms of the financual asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and profit on the pancipal amount outstanding.

On mniual recogniuon of an cquity investment that 1s not held for trading, the Bank may irrevocably clect
1o present subsequent changes in fair value 1n OCI This clection 1s made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

All other financal assets are classified as measured at FA'TPL.

In addition, on 1al recogmition, the Bank may trrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FV'TPL if doing so
cluninates or significantly reduces an accountng mismaich that would otherwise anse.
et oo i = —— =




Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC)
Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(in thousands of Azerbayan Manats)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
4.4 Changes in accounting policies - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)
4.4.1 Financial instruments - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Business model assessment:

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is being managed and informaton is
provided to management.

The information considered includes:

¢ the stated policies and objecuves for the portfolio and the operauon of those policies n practice. In
partcular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning  contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duravon of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realizing cash flows through the sale of the
assets;

® how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Bank’s management;

o the nsks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business modcel) and how those risks are managed;

* how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation s based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

® the frequency, volume and uming of sales i prior periods, the reasons for such sales and s
expectauons about the future sales acuvity. However, mformation about sales actvity is not
considered 1n 1solation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Bank’s stated objective for
managing the financial assets 1s achieved and how cash flows are realized.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and profit:

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ 15 defined as the farr value of the financial assct on inital
recognition. “Profit’ 1s defined as consideravon for the ume value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding duning a particular period of time and for other basic
financing risks and costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of prinapal and profit, the Bank
considers the contractual terms of the nstrument. This includes assessing whether the financial assct
contains a contractual term that could change the uming or amount of contractual cash flows such that 1t
would not mect this condition. In making the assessment, the Bank considers:

¢ conungent events that would change the amount and uming of cash flows,
e leverage features;
e prepayment and exiension lerms;

e terms that bmit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets {e.g. non-recourse asset
arrangements); and

e features that modify consideration of the ime value of money — eg. penodical resct of interest rate.
13
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.4 Changes in accounting policies - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)
4.4.1 Financial instruments - applicable from 1 January 2018 {(continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Reclassifications:

Financial assets are not reclasstficd subsequent to their iniual recognition, except i the peniod after the
Bank changes 1ts business model for managing financial assets.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

The Bank's financial habilities include loans and deposits from banks and financial mstitutions, deposits
from customers and certamn other habilites. Financial habilities are measured subsequently at amortised
cost using the cffecuve terest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Frnancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
only when there 1s a legally enforceable nght 1o offset the recogrused amounts and there 1s an mtention to
scttle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the hability simultancously.

Impairment

The Bank calculate provision as per [FRS and CBAR regulations and record the higher of both. The Bank
recognises allowance for impairment for expected credut losses (LCL) on financial assets measured at
amorused cost, loan commitments issued, and financial guarantee contracts 1ssued. Impairment losses are
recognized tn the profit or loss.

The Bank measures allowance for impairment at an amount equal to lifetme ECL, except for those
financial instruments on which credit nisk has not increased significantly since their mital recognition, in
which case 12-month ECL is measured.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after reporung dace.

Measurement of ECL:

ECL are probability-weighted esumate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

* financial assets that are not creditaimpaired at the reporung date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receve).

* financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference berween the gross
carrying amount and the present value of esumated futare cash flows;

* undrawn finance commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Bank if the commitment 1s drawn down and the cash flows that the Bank
cxpects to receive.

* financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments 1o reimburse the holder less any amounts that
the Bank expecets to recover.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.4 Changes in accounting policies - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)
4.4.1 Financial instruments - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impairment (continued)

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existung financial asset 1s replaced with
a new one due o financial difficulies of the borrower, then an assessment 1s made of whether the
financial asset should be derecognized and ECL are measured as follows:

o If the expected restructunng will not result in derecognition of the exisung asset, then the expected
cash flows ansing from the modified financial asset are mcluded 1n ealeulaung the cash shosifalls
from the cxisting asset.

» If the expected restructuring will result in derecogniton of the existung asset, then the expected fair
value of the new asser is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial assct at the ume of
its derecognition. This amount 15 included in calculanng the cash shortfalls from the existng financial
assct. The cash shortfalls are discounted from the expected date of derecognivon to the teporung
date using the onginal effective mterest rate of the existing financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets:

At cach reporung date, the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried ar amorused cost and debt
financial asscts carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. .\ financial asset 15 ‘credit- impaired’ when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financal asset ts credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

syrmuficant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or past due event,
¢ the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider
otherwise;
it 15 becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization; or
e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Purchased or originated credit impaired assets (POCI)

POCI assers are financial assets that are credit impaired on iniual recogmuon. POCI assets are recorded at
farr value at onginal recogmuon and mierest mcome 15 subsequently recognized based on a credit-
adjusted CIR. Life ume ECLs are only recognized or released to the extent that there is a subsequent
change 1n the ECL.

Revolving facilities

The Bank’s product offering includes a vartery of corporate and retail overdraft and credit cards facilives,
in which the Bank has the nght to cancel and/or reduce the facilities at a short notice. The Bank does not
limut 1ts exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice period, but, nstead caleulates ECL over a
periad that reflects the Bank’s expectanons of the customer behaviour, 1ts hkelthood of default and the
Bank’s future nsk mitigaton procedures, which could melude reducing or cancelling the facilities. Based
on past experience and the Bank’s expectauons, the period over which the Bank calculates ECLs for
these products, s esumared based on the period over which the Bank 1s exposed to credit nisk and where
the credit losses would not be mitigated by management actions
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.4 Changes in accounting policies - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)
4.4.1 Financial instruments - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impairment (continued)
Write-off:

Assets carnied at amortised cost and debt securinies at FVOCT are writien off (either partally or in full)
when there 15 no realistic prospect of recovery. This is gencrally the case when the Bank has exhausted all
legal and remedial efforts to recover from the customers. Flowever, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement acuvities 1n order to comply with the Bank’s proecdures for recovery
of amounts due.

Reversals of impairment loss

If the amount of an mpairment loss decreases in a subsequent peniod, and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impaiment was recogmsed, the excess 15 written back by
reducing the loan imparrment allowance account accordingly. The write back 15 recognised 1 the
statement of comprehensive income

Financial guarantees and loan commitments - applicable from 1 January 2018

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make specificd payments to ramburse the
holders for a loss they incur because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt mstrument. The financial guarantee hability 1s carned at amortsed cost when
payment under the contract has become probable,

‘Loans commitments’ are firm irrevocable commuments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and
conditions.

Financial guarantees 1ssued or wrrevocable commitments to provide credit are wnitally measured at fair
value and their imual fair value 1s amorused over the bife of the guarantee or the commitment

Subsequently, they are measured at the higher of this amortsed amount and the amount of loss
allowance.

Loans and advances to customers - applicable from 1 January 2018

‘Loans and advances to customers’ captions in the statement of financial position include loans and
advances measured at amortised cost: they are imtally measured at fair value plus mcremental direct
transaction costs, and subsequently at their amortsed cost using the cffective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents - applicable from 1 January 2018

Cash and cash equivalents are items, which are readily converuble to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant nisk of changes n value. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand
and balances with Ceneral Bank and balances with other banks with onginal matunities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition. Cash and cash cquivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement
of financial positon.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

4.4 Changes in accounting policies - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

4.4.1 Financial instruments - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Transition

When adopung [FRS 9, the Bank has applied wansitional relief and opied not 1o restate prior periods.
Differences ansing from the adoption of IFRS 9 in relaton to classification, measurement, and
imparment are recogmised in retained carnings as at January 1, 2018. \ccordingly, the information
presented for 2017 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9 and therefore not comparable to the

informaton presented for period under IFRS 9.

The following assessments have been made on the basts of the facts and eircumstances that existed at the

date of inital application.

¢ The determinauon of the business madel within which a financial asset is held.

o  The desygnaton of certain investments in equity mstruments not held for trading as at FVOCL

The table below hists the financial instruments of the Bank which were reclassified. However, except for
the financial statement caption listed in the table below there have been no changes in the classification of
assets and liabilities on application of TFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018,

Measurement category

Carrying amount (AZN '000))

Original IAS  New IFRS
39 categocy 9 category

Assets
Cash and balances Loans and Amortsed
with Central bank recevables cost
Balances with other Loans and Amorused
banks recetvables cost
Loans and advances Loans and Amorused
to customers recevables cost
Loans and Amortised
Other assets recewvables cost

Provision on off
balance sheet
items:

Guarantees and
commitments

Effect of IFRS 9 adoption on 1 January 2018

]'.‘

Closing
balance 31
December

2017 (IAS 39)

393,630

4450

Adoption
of IFRS 9

(3,320)

(782)
(4,102)

Opening
balance

1 January
2018 (IFRS 9)
48,140

12,580

390,310

4450
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
4.4 Changes in accounting policies - applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

4.4.2 IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers - applicable from 1 January
2018

This standard on revenue recogmition replaces EAS 11, ‘Construction contracts’, and [AS 18, Revenue’
and related inrerpretanons.

II'RS 15 1s more prescaptive, provides detatled gudance on revenue recognition and reduces the use of
judgment 1n applying revenue recogrion policies and pracuces as compared to the replaced [FRS and
related interpretatons.

Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of a good or service. A customer obtains control
when it has the ability to direct the use of and obtain the benefits from the good or service

The Bank also operates a rewards programme which allows customers to accumulate poiats when they
purchase products on the Bank’s credic cards. The pownts can then be redeemed for shopping rewards,
cash back or air nules, subject to a mimmum number of points being obtained.

The core principle of 1IFRS 15 1s that an entity recognizes revenue as it transfers the promised goods or
services to customers i an amount that reflects the consideraton to which the ennty expects to be
enutled mn exchange for those goods or services.

IFRS 15 also includes a comprehensive set of disclosure requirements that will result i an entity
providing users of financial statements with comprehensive informaton about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertunty of revenue and cash flows ansing from the enury’s contracts with customers.

The Bank has assessed the impace of IFRS 15 and has adopted with no material impact on the financial
statements of the Bank as at the adoption date and the reporung date.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
4.5 Financial instruments - applicable before 1 January 2018
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Fmancial assets and financial iabilines are recognised when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured mtiatly ac farr value plus transactons costs.
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recogmsed on the trade-date — the date on which the
Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asser and all substannal risks and rewards are transferred.

A financial hiability is derecogrused when 1t 1s exunguished, discharged, cancelled or expired.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured subsequently as deseribed below.
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets other than those designated and effective as
hedging instruments are classified into the following eategones upon initial recognition:

¢ loans and recervables.

The category determunes subsequent measurement and whether any resulung mcome or expense 13
recogmised in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and recervables are non-denvanve financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that arc not
quoted 1n an acuve market. After initial recognition these are measured at amorused cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Discountng ts omitted where the effect of
discounung 1s immaterial. The Bank's cash and balances with Central Bank, balances with other banks,
loans and advances to customers and certan other assets fall into this category of financial instruments.

Individually sigmificant recervables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other
objective evidence 15 receved that a specific counterparty will defaule. Recervables that are not considered
to be individually impaired are reviewed for impatrment in groups, which are determined by reference to
the industry and region of a counrerparty and other shared credit nsk charactenstics. The impairment loss
estiumate 15 then based on recent historical counterparty default rates for each idenufied group.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

The Bank’s financial habilines include loans and deposits from banks and financial msututions, deposits
from customers and certun other labiliues.

Financial habiliues are measured subscquendy at amorused cost usmyg the effective interest method.
Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and habilities are offset and the net amount reported i the statement of financial posiaon

only when there 15 a lepally enforceable nght to offset the recogmised amounts and there is an intention 1o
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and sertfe the hability sunultancously.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
4.6 Loans and advances to customers - applicable before 1 January 2018

Loans and advances to customers include loans and advances orgmated by the Bank and these are
recognised when cash 15 advanced to borrowers. These are derecognised when cither borrower repays
their obliganons, or the loans are sold or written off, or substanually all the nsks and rewards of
ownership are transfeered. They are mitnlly recorded ar fair value plus any direetly attmbutable transaction
costs and arc subsequenmtly measured ar amortised cost using the cffectve interest method, less
impairment losses, if any.

4.7 Impairment of financial assets - applicable before 1 January 2018

All financial asscts except for those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to review for
tmpairment at least at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired when there is any objective
cvidence that a financial asset or a group of financial asscts is impaired.

For amounts due to the Bank, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptey and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in the profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurning after the impairment was tecognized, subject to the restriction that the
carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that the imparment 13 reversed shall not exceed what
the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

Where financial assets are impared through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss 1
recognized 1n the statement of comprehensive mncome. When such assets are written-off, the write-off 1
made aganst the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously writien-off are
credited against operating expenses.

Impairment of loans and advances

Losses on impaired loans are recognised promptly when there is objective evidence that impatrment of a
loan has occurred. Impairment losses are calculated on dividual Ioans and on group of loans assessed
collecavely. Imparment losses are recorded as charges to the statement of comprehensive income. The
carrying amount of impaired loans on the statement of financial position 1s reduced through the use of
impairment allowance accounts. Losses expected from future events are not recognised.

Impairment losses are recogmsed promptly when there 1s an objective evidence that impairment of a
financial asset has occurred as a result of one or more events that oceurred after the inital recogniton of
the financial asset and which have an impact on the amount or uming of the esumated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably esumated. If the Bank determines
that no objectve evidence exists that impairment was tncurred for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset 1 a group of financial assets with similar credit nsk
charactenstics and collecuvely assesses them for impatrment
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.7 Impairment of financial assets - applicable before 1 January 2018 (continued)
Impairment of loans and advances (continued)

Along with the prudenual regulations of the prnmary factors that the Bank considers whether a financial
assct 1s impaired are its overdue seatus and realizability of related collateral, if any. The following other
principal criterta are also used to determine that there 1s objecuve evidence that an imparment loss has
occurred:

¢ the viability of the customer's business model and 1ts capability to trade successfully out of financial
difficulties and generate sufficient cash flow to service 1ts debt oblipations;

*  One of the major customer 15 a government entity.

¢ the reabisable value of seeunty {or other credit miugavons) and likelthood of successful repossession;

e the hikely deduction of any costs volved m recovery of amounts outstanding;

e the borrower experiences a sigmificant financial difficulty as evidenced by borrower's financial
information that the Bank obtans;

® the borrower constders bankruptcy or a financial reorganisation; or

® the adverse change in the payment status of the borrower as a result of changes in the internatonal or
local econotnic conditions that impact the borrower,

Write-offs of loans and advances and guarantees

-\ loan and guarantee (and the related impairment allowance) is normally wntten off, either partally or in
full, when there 1s no realisuc prospeet of recovery of the principal amount and, for a collateralised loan,
when the proceeds from realising the secunty have been received.

Reversals of impairment of loans and advances

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impatrment was recognised, the excess 1s written back by
reducing the loan impairment allowance account accordingly. The wnte back 1s recognised in the
statement of comprchenstve income.

4.8 Cash and cash equivalents - applicable hefore 1 January 2018

Cash and cash equivalents are 1tems, which are readily converuble to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an sigmficant nsk of changes in value. Cash and ceash equivalents include cash on hand
and balances with Central Bank and balances with other banks with onginal matunties of three months or
less. Cash and cash equivalents are carnied 1 the statement of financial position at cost which 1s the fair
value of these balances.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
4.9 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are wiually recognised at acquisiion cost, including any costs dircetly attributable
to branging the assets to the locaton and condition necessary for it to be capable of operatng in the
manner intended by the Bank's management,

These assets are subscquently measured using the cost model and are stated at cost less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses, except for butlding.

Building held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrauve purposes,
was stated mn the statement of financial position at the revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Revaluation 1s made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the reporting date.

Any increase i an assct's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluaton, is recognised in other
comprehensive income and credited to the 'revaluation reserve’ in equity. The increase is recognised in
the profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recogmsed in the profit or Joss and any remamning increase 1s recognised i other comprehensive income.

Any decrease in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, 1s recognised 1n the profit or loss
mn the current pentod. The decrease 1s debited directly to equity i the revaluaton reserve to the extent of
any credit balance exisung in the revaluanon surplus in respect of that asset and any remaining decrease
recogmised in profit or loss,

Depreciation is recognised on reducing balance method to wrte down the cost less esumated residual
value of property and equipment. The following esumated uscful lives are apphed:

e Building 100 years
» Furniture 4 years
¢ LEqupment 3 years
e Computers 4 years
e Motor velucles 4 years
e Other asscts 5 years

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful hife are updated as required, but at least annually,
whether or not the asset is revalued.

Gams or losses amsing on the disposal of property and equipment are determined as the difference
between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assers and are recognised 1n profit or loss
within 'other income’.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
4.10 Repossessed collaterals

Repossessed collateral represents non-financial assets acquired by the Bank n settlement of overdue
loans. These assets are mitally recognized at lower of their previous carrving amount or fair value less
costs to scll and are included 1 other assets. These assets are subsequently measured and accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policies for these categonies of assets

4.11 Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired software used in operations. They are accounted for using the cost
model whereby capatalised costs are amortised on a reducing balance method over their esumated uscful
lives, as these assets are considered fintte, Residual values and vseful lives are reviewed at each reporting
date. In addition, they are subject to impairment testing. The useful life of software 1s 10 years.

Costs assoctated with maintaining computer software, Le. expenditure relating to patches and other minor
updates as well as their installation, s expensed as incurred.

The gain or loss arsing on the disposal of an intangible asset 1s determined as the difference between the
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and 1s recognised in profit or loss within ‘other income’.

4.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
laggely independent eash inflows (cash-generaung units). s a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at cash-generatng unie level.

All individual assets or cash-generaung units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

\n impatrment loss 15 recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-
use. To determine the value-in-usc, management estumates expected future cash flows from each cash-
generatng unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to caleulate the present value of those cash
flows.

Al assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may
no longer exist. An mparment charge 15 reversed if the cash-gencraung unit's recoverable amount
exceeds 1is carrying amount.

4.13 Other assets

Other assets are measured at il recogniuon at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effecuve interese rate method.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
4.14 Leased assets
Operating lease - as lessee

Leases where the lessor retains a significant portion of the nisks and rewards of ownership are classified as
operating leases. Payments on operaung lease agreements are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basts over the fease term. Associated costs arc expensed as incurred

4.15 Loans and deposits from banks and financial institutions and deposits from
customers

These are recogmsed wutially at fur value, net of transacuon costs mcurred. Loans and deposus are
subsequenty stated a1 amorused cost, any difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value s recognised mn the statement of comptehensive income over the pertod of the loans
and deposit using the effectuve interest method

4.16 Other liabilities

Other habilities are imually measured at fatr value, and are subscquently measured at amorused cost, using
the effective mterest rate method.

4.17 Equity and reserves

Shares are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash or other financial
assets. Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of equity instruments are shown n equity as a
deduction from the proceeds, net of tmx.

Retmned carnings include all current and prior period retained profits.

All ransactions with owners are recorded separately within equuty.

4.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an
outflow of cconomic resources from the Bank and amounts can be esumated reliably. Timing or amount
of the outflow may sull be uncertmn. A present obligation arnses from the preseace of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provision for guarantee claims and other off-balance sheer obligations 1s recogntzed when intimated and
rcasonable certainty exists to settle the obligauons. Expected recovenies are recognized by debiting
customer accounts. Charge to profit and loss account s stated net of expected recovenies. Provisions are
not recogmsed for future operating losses.

Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the ome value of money 18 material

All provisions are reviewed at each reporung date and adjusted to reflect the current best esumate.

In thosc cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations 1s

considered umprobable or remote, no hability 1s recogmised, unless it was assumed 1n the course of a
business combination.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
4.19 Employees' benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The Bank grants compensated absences to all us regular employees. The expected cost of compensated
absences 15 recognized as an expense when the employee renders services thar increase their entitlement
or, in the case of non-accumulaung absences, when the absences occur. Quistanding balance of such
absences s paid to employees ac the end of each financial year hence no liabiliey has been booked i the
financial statements.

Defined contribution plan

The Bank contnbuies to the Social Secunty Fund consttuted by Government as pee the Azerbayan
Republic legislason. These contnbutions are made at 22% and 3% of gross salary by the Bank and
employees respectively. Further, in accordance with amendments 1n the Tax Code of the Republic of
Azerbayan during the current year, these rates have been set as 153% and 10% for the Bank and
employees respectively which are applicable from 1 January 2(H9. Upon reurement all retirement benefi
payments are made by the state pension fund.

4.20 Revenue recognition

Interest income and expense

Interest tncome and expense for all interest-beanng financial instruments are recogmsed within 'interest
income' and 'interest expense' in the statement of comprehensive income using the cffecuve interest
method.

The effective mnterest method 15 a method of calculaung the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the terest mcome or nterest expense over the relevant period. The
cffecuve interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts esumated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financml instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter pertod to the net carrying
amount of the financtal asset or financial liabiliey. When calculating the effectve mterest rate, the Bank
estumates cash flows consideniag all contractual terms of the financial mstrument but does not consider
future credit losses. Once a loan has been warten down or partly written down as a result of impairment
loss, interest income 15 recognized on receipt basis tn compliance with applicable Prudenual Regulasons.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income are generally recognised on accrual basis when the services have been

provided.
4.21 Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognised 1n profic or loss upon utithsaton of the service or at the date of their
origin.

]
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{in thousands of Azerbanan Manais)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
4.22 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current and deferred tax expense.
Current

The current tax expense 15 based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported 1 the statement of comprehensive tncome because it excludes items of income or expense that
arce taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deducnble,
The Bank's current tax expense 1s calculated using tax rates that have been cenacted or substanuvely
enacted during the reporung period.

Deferred

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the earrying
amounts of assets and kabilines in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used n the
computation of taxable profit, and 15 accounted for using the hiability method. Deferred tax liabilitics arc
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it 15 probable that taxable profits will be available agunst which deductible temporary
differences can be unlized. Such assets and habilities are not recognized if the temporary difference anises
from the mnital recognition of other assets and habilities i a transaction that affects netther the tax profit
nor the accounung profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each reporung date and reduced to the extent
that 1t 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avatlable to allow all or part of the asset
1o be recovered.

Deferred tax is caleulated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liabilicy 1s
settled or the asset 15 realized, Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the statement of comprehensive
mncome, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, 1n which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equicy.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabiliies are offset and reported net on the
statement of financial posituon if:

¢ The Bank has a legally enforceable night to set off current income tax asscts aganst current income
tax liabilides: and

e Deferred tax assets and the deferred income tax habiliues refate to ncome tases levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable cnury.

Azerbaijan Republic also has various other taxes, which are assessed on the Bank's acuviues. These taxes
are included as a component of operatng expenses n the statement of comprehensive income.

4.23 Eamnings/Losses per share

Earnings/Losses per share are determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to owners of the
Bank by the weighted average number of parucipaung shares owstanding during the reporting year.
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(1n thousands of \zerbagan Manats)

4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
4.24 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make certan judgements, estmates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of financial assets and liabihiues and the resultant
allowances for mparment and fair values. In parucular, considerable judgment by management is
required 1n the ¢sumation of the amount and umimng of future eash flows when determining the level of
allowances required for impared loans to customers. Estumates and judgments are conunually evaluated
and are based on lustorical experience and other factors including expectatons of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Estmates and undeclying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basts. Revisions to esumates are recogmized prospecuvely.

The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Bank
that have the most significant effect on the financial statements. Critical estimation uncertaintics are
described 1n note 4.25.

4.24.1 Judgement and estimates related to Financial instruments - applicable from
1 January 2018

Judgements made m applying accounting policies that have most significant effects on the amount
recognized 1 the financial statements of the peniod ended 31 December 2018 pertain to the changes
introduced as a result of adopuon of IFRS 9: Financial instruments which inpact:

s Classificaon of financial assers: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and
assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial assets are solely payment of principal
and interest of the poncipal amount outstanding:

¢ Calculavon of expected credir loss (ECL): changes to the assumpuons and esumauon uncertaintics
that have a sigmficant impact on ECL for the year ended 31 December 2018 pertain to the changes
introduced as a result of adoption of IFRS 9: Financial instruments. The mmpact 15 mainly derven by
inputs, assumptions and techaiques used for ECL calculanion under [FRS 9 methodology

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for ECL calculation — IFRS 9 Methodology

Key concepts in IFRS 9 that have the most sigmficant impact and require a high level of judgment, as
considered by the Bank while determining the impact assessment, arc:

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk:

The assessment of a significant increase in credit nsk 1s done on a relauve basts. To assess whether the
credit nisk on a financial asset has increased sigmuficantly since originaton, the Bank compares the nisk of
default occurring over the expected hife of the financial asscet at the reporting date 1o the corresponding
tisk of default at onginanon, using key sk indicators that are used in the Bank’s existing nisk
management processes.

The assessment of significant increases 1 credit risk 1s bemg performed ar least quarterly for each
individual exposure based on below menuoned factors. I any of the following factors indicates that a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred, the mstrument will be moved from Stage 1 to Stage 2:

1. The Bank have established thresholds for sigmficant increases mn eredit nsk relauve to initial
recognition.

)

Addmonal qualitative reviews have been performed to assess the staging results and make
adjustments, as necessary, to better reflect the posittions which have sigmficantly ncreased in nsk
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
4.24 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies (continued)

4.24.1 Judgement and estimates related to Financial instruments - applicable from
1 January 2018 (continued)

Assessment of Significant Increase in Credit Risk (continued):

Movements between Stage 2 and Srage 3 are based on whether financial assets are credit impaired as at
the reporung date. The determination of credit-imparment under IFRS 9 1s similar to the individual
assessment of financial assets for objecuve evidence of impairment under [1AS 39.

Macroeconomic Factors, Forward Looking Informatien (FLI) and Multiple Scenarios:

The measurement of expected credit losses for each stage and the assessment of significant increases
credit nisk must consider mnformation abour past events and current conditions as well as reasonable and
supportable forecasts of future events and cconomic conditions. The estimaton and application of
forward-looking information requires significant judgment.

PD, Loss Green Default (LGD) and Exposure At Default (EAD) inputs used to esumate Stage 1 and
Stage 2 credit loss allowances are modelled based on the macroeconomic vamables (or changes in
macrocconomic variables) that are most closely correlated with credit losses i the relevant portfolio.
Management overlay 15 also used to align the macroeconomics factors with the current conditon of

portfolio based on best management estimare and information.

The csumation of cxpected credit losses in Stagel and Stage 2 15 a discounted probability weighted
estimate that considers a minimnum of three future macroeconomic scenarios.

Definition of default:

The definition of default used in the mensurement of expected credit losses and the assessment to
determine movement berween stages is consistent with the defimtion of defaule used for internal credit
risk management purposes. IFRS 9 does not define default but contains a rebuttable presumpuon that
default has occurred when an exposure s greater than 90 days past due.

Expected Life

When measuring ECL, the Bank must consider the maximum contractual period over which the Bank is
exposed to credit nisk. All applicable contractual terms are considered when determining the expected life,
including prepayment options and extension and rollover options. For certain revolving credit facilities
that do not have a fixed maturity, the expeeted life s estimated based on the perod over which the Bank
15 exposed to credit risk

Governance:

In addition to the existing risk management framework, the Bank has established an ternal Committee
to provide oversght to the IFRS 9 impairment process. The Commitice 15 compnsed of sentor
representatives from Finance, Risk Management and Economics and is responsible for reviewing and
approving key mputs and assumptions used in our expected credit loss estimates. It also assesses the
appropriateness of the overall allowance results to be included in the financial statements.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
4.24 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies {(continued)
4.24.2 [Initial recognition of related party transactions

In the normal course of business the Bank enters into transacuons with s related parties. 1A8 39 requires
imual recognition of financial instruments based on their fair values. Judgement is applied in determining
if transactions are priced at market or non-market interest rates, where there 1s no active market for such
transactions. The basis for judgement 1s pricing for similar types of transactons with unrelated parties and
effective interest rate analysis.

4.24.3 Term borrowings

The Bank obtains long-term financing from the government at interest rates which are lower than rates at
which the Bank could source the funds from local lenders. s a result of such financing, the Bank 1s able
to advance funds to specific customers (under specific lending programmes) at advantageous rates.
Management have considered whether gains or losses should amse on initial recognition of such
instruments. As the transactions are with unrelated parties, management's judgement 1s that these funds
and the related lending are at the market rates and no inital recognition gains or losses should arise. In
making this judgement management also considered that these nstruments are a separate market
segment.

4.,24.4 Leases

In applying the classification of Ieases in 1AS 17, as a lessee, the management considers its leases as
operating lease. In some cases, the lease transaction 15 not always conclusive, and management uses
judgment in determining whether the lease in an operating lease arrangement.

4.24.5 Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to wlich deferred tax assets can be recognised s based on an assessment of the probabiliry of
the Bank’s future taxable income agamnst which the deductble temporary differences can be uuhsed. In
addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits or
uncertainties in various tax junisdictions (see note 4.22).

4.25 Estimation uncertainty

Information about esumates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, ncome and expenses is provided below. ctual results may substantally

differ.
Useful lives of depreciable and amortisable assets

Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable and amorusable assets which include property and
equpment, and meangible assets at each reporting date, based on the expected unlity of the asscts 10 the
Bank. Actual results, however, may vary due to technical obsolescence, parucularly relaung to sofrware
and IT equipment.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

4.25 Estimation uncertainty {continued)

Impairment of property and equipment and intangible assets

An impairment loss 1s recogmsed for the amount by which the asset's or cash-generating unit's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. To determie the recoverable amount, management csumates
expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. In the process of measuring expected future cash flows
management makes assumptions about future operatng results. Thesc assumpuons relate to future events
and circumstances. The actual results may vary, and may cause significant adjustments to the Bank's assets
within the next financial year.

In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves esumating the appropriate adjustment to
market risk and the appropnate adjustment to asset-specific nisk factors

Provision for impairment of loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are measured at amortized cost less allowance for impairment losses.
The estuimation of allowances for impairment involves the exercise of significant judgment and estimates.
The Bank estimates allowances for impairment with the objective of mantaining provisions at a level
believed by management to be sufficient to absorb losses incurred in the Bank's loan portfolio. The
calculation of provisions 1s manly made using ECL model and also ume base criterta determined by the
applicable prudential regulatons.

Provisions

Provisions are raised based on management’s estimates from information available surrounding particular
transactions. Prudence 15 exercised when esumaung provisions so as not o materially overstate the Bank’s
reported net income and understates its abilites.

Contingent liability arising from litigations

Due to the nature of its operations, the Bank may be involved in litigations arnising in the ordinary course
of business. Provision for contingent lmbiliies ansing from lingacons 15 based on the probability of
outflow of economic resources and rebabiliry of esumaung such outflow. Such matters are subject to
many uncertaintics and the outcome of ndwidual matters 1s not predictable with assurance. Esumates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to csumates are apphed
prospectively.

Fair value of property and equipment
Management estmates the far values of property and equipment based on current market prices of

recent transactons and rental yields in neighbouring and adjoining areas if an independent valuer
determines the fair value on a different date than reporung date.
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(in thousands of Azerbayan Manats)

5 Cash and balances with Central Bank

Cash n hand

Balances with Central Bank other than mandatory minimum
reserve deposits

Included in cash and cash equivalents (note 6)
Mandatory minimum reserve deposits with Central Bank

Cash and cash equivalents

2018 2017
AZN AZN
35,161 37,203
13,791 8,802
48,952 46,095
4,350 2,045
53,302 48,140

Mandatory mimmum reserve deposits are not available for use 1n the Bank's day-to-day operations. Cash
in hand, balances with Central Bank and mandatory mimmum reserve deposits are non-nterest-bearing,

At the reporung date, this includes blocked correspondent accounts of Nil (2017: AZN Nil).

6 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows include the followng

componcnts:

Cash and balances with Central Bank (note 5)
Balances with other banks (note 7)

Other asscts

7 Balances with other banks
Correspondent accounts

Less: Allowance for impairment losses (note 7.1)

7.1 Allowance for impairment losses

Balance at 1 January,

Allowance for impairment losscs charge for the year

Balance at 31 December

8 Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances

Accrued tnterest income

Less: allowance for impairment losses (note 8.1

2018 2017
AZN AZN
48,952 46,095
10,585 12,707
255 850
59,792 59,652
10,585 12,707
(126) (127)
10,459 12,580
127 46

(1) 81

126 127
2018 2017
AZN AZN
584,593 424,028
1,886 5,647
586,479 429,675
(34,352) (36,045)
552,127 393,630
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(in thousands of \zerbayan Manats)

8 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Loans and advances to customers carry mterest rates rangmg from 4% o 25% per annun
(2017: 3.2% to 27%0 per annumy).

FFor lending limits breach please refer note 24.1

Analysis by industry for loans and advances to customers

2018 2017
AZN RVAWN
Transportaton 556,249 398,053
Individuals 20,163 21,798
Trading and scrvice 8,181 4177
584,593 424,028

Analysis by currency for loans and advances to customers
2018 2017
AZN AZN
AZN 179,467 158,335
UsD 386,508 253,636
EUR 18,618 12,057
584,593 424,028

8.1 Allowance for impairment losses

The followmng table show reconcihations from the opentng to the closing balance of the allowance for
impairment loss as a result of the adopuon of IFRS 9: Financial mnstruments. Refer to note 4.4 and note
4.24.1.

2018 217

AZN AZN

Balance at 1 January 36,045 28,902
Add: Opening adjustment as per IFRS 9 (note 4.4 and note 4.24.1) 4,102 -
{Reversal)/Charge for the year (5,867) 7,214
Wite-off of loans (8) 8
Wite back due to recovernes 80 (63)
Balance at 31 December 34,352 36,045

The provision aganst loans and advances has been provided based on bank internal policies in
compliance with TFRS requirements of AZN 3435 milion as at 31 December 2018, However,
management reported provision against loans and advance of AZN 27 million m thewr prudential returns
as of 31 December 2018 in compliance with Finaneial Market Supervisory Authority of \zerbagjan
(FIMSA)Y and Central Bank of Azerbayan (CBAR) requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

(in thousands of Azerbajjan Manats)

10 Other assets

2018 2017
AZN AZN
Amounts 1n course of settlements 3,408 3,710
Prepayments 432 440
Orther asscts 192 300
4,032 4,430

11 Loans and deposits from banks and financial institutions
2018 2017
AZN AZN
Loans from Central Bank 22,731 17,751
Dieposits from other banks and financil instirutions 13,531 88,729
Due to Arzerbajan Mortgage Fund 4,548 3471
40,810 109,951

The loans from CBAR carry mterest rates ranging from 3% 10 9.75% per annum (2017: 3% per annumy),
secured and are payable within one year

Deposits from other banks and financial msurutions carry interest rates ranging from 3% to 6% per
annum (2017: 3% to 6.67" per annum).

The loans from Azerbagan Mortgage Fund  carry interest rates of 1% to 4% per annum
(2017: 1% 1o 4% per annum) and are unsecured and loans are repayable within 18 to 30 years.

12 Deposits from customers
2018 2017
AZN AZN
Term deposits 346,484 161,385
Current accounts 118,895 80,241
Acerued interest expense on term deposits 732 429
466,111 242,055

hatdl |
[XIF|



Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Sitk Way Bank OJSC)
Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

{1n thousands of Azerbayjan Manats)

12 Deposits from customers (continued)
Term deposits

These are unsecured and carry anterest rates ranging from 1%% 1o 12% per annum (2017 1% 1o 8% per
annumy}.

Analysis by industry for deposits from customers

2018 2017
AZN AZN
Indwviduals 429,359 201,232
Trade 22,679 6,021
Agriculture 5 9
Constructon 8 26
Transport and communicarion 13,824 34,212
Other 236 555
466,111 242,055

13 Other liabilities
2018 2017
AZN AZN
Payable to statc-owned organisavon 1,244 208
Accruals and other payables 3,393 3,870
4,637 4,084

14 Share capital

The share capital of the Bank consists only of fully pud ordinary shares with a par value of AZN 154
(2017: AZN 154) each. Al shares are equally cligible to receive dridends and the repayment of capital
and represent one vote at the sharcholders” meeting of the Bank.

Number of shares 2018 2017
Shares issued and fully pard: at 31 December 679 679
Tatal shares authorised at 31 December 679 679

Total shares authonsed, issued and fully paid at 31 December (in
AZN) 104,601 104,601

Bank declared AZN 1,900 dividend on ordinary shares during the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).
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{in thousands of \zerbayan Manats)

15 Net interest income

2018 2017
Interest income AZN AZN
Interest on loans and advances to customers 35,524 26,623
Interest on guarantces 2,006 1,178
Interest on balances with other banks 26 2
37,556 27.803
Interest expense
Interest on loans and deposits from banks and financial msurutons 2,042 6,540
Interest on deposits from customers 12,761 5,211
14,803 11,751
Net interest income 22,753 16,052
16 Gains from foreign exchange operations - net
2018 2017
AZN AZN
Translation differences — net (235) (296}
Dealing - net 7,569 9,379
Tortal 7,334 9,083
17 Fees and commission income
2018 2017
AZN AZN
Plastic card operations 9,367 6,011
Settlements 3,152 2,082
Cash operations 1,627 1,373
Guarantee commussion 58 29
Total 14,204 9495
18 Fees and commission expense
2018 2017
AZN AEN
Plastic card operanons 3,086 1,942
Setdements 605 163
Guarantee commission 18 80
Other 181 120
Total 3,890 2,605

e
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iin thousands of \zcerbagan Manats)

19 Other (expense/)fincome - net

2018 2017
AZN AZN
Loss on disposal of property and equipment (86) -
Other income 26 36
(60) 36

20 Depreciation and amortization expense
2018 2017
AZN AZN
Deprectauon of property and equipment 704 527
Amornzaton of intangble assets 65 43
Total 769 570

21 Administrative and general expenses

2018 2017
AZN AZN
Adverusing and markeung expenses 17,775 13,358
Salanes and benefits 4,925 4,030
Rent expenses 2,806 2,020
Insurance expenscs 831 487
Travelling and entertainment 678 103
Fines, penalbes and forferts 566 -
Legal and professional expenses 515 300
Security expenses 349 394
Office supphes 260 125
Repairs and maintenance expenses 219 495
Communications expenses 199 177
Vehicle running expenses 80 71
Taxes other than income tax 79 50
Unlities expenses 45 39
Other expenses 437 490
Total 29,764 22,139

38



Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open jJoint Stock Venture Sitk Way Bank OJSC)
Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(in thousands of Azerbayan Manats)

22 Taxation

Azerbagan commercial and 1ax legislagon 1n particular may give nse to varving interpretattons and
amendments. [n addition, as management's meerpretation of tax legislanon may differ from that of the tax
authoritics, transaction may be challenged by the tax authorites, and as a result the Bank may be assessed
for addiional tax, penalues and interest. The management believes that the Bank 1s 1 substantial
compliance of tax legslanon. Deferred tax asset of AZN 820 thousand at | January 2018, on the
adopuon of 1FRS 9, and deferred tax asset of AZN 653 thousand for the year has not been recognised
based on the management assumpton that the cffect is immatenal.

2018 2017
AZN AZN
Current tax 2,992 539
2,992 539
22.1 Current tax
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
2018 2017
AZN AZN
Accounting profit before tax 15,675 2,138
Tax calculated at the rate of 20%% (2017: 20%) on:
- Accounung profit 3,135 427
- Tax effect of expenses not deducuble for tax purposes (143) 112
Income tax expense for the year 2,992 539

Management believes that the Bank 15 in substanual compliance with the tax laws affecting 1ts operations,
23 Related parties

The Bank tn the normal course of business carries on business with other entities that fall within the
defimuon of related party contmned in IFRS as issued by the 1ASB. Thesce transactons are carried out 1n
the normal course of business and are measured at exchange amounts, betng the amounts agreed by both
the parues.

For the purpose of these financial statements, entitics are considered to be related to the Bank if i¢ has the
abiliry, directly or ndirectly, to excrase significant influence over the ennties in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Bank and other enuty 1s subject to common control or
signtftcant influence, key management personnel and other related parues.

Detads of related party transacuons entered mto during the year are set out on next page.
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23 Related parties (continued)

23.1 Balances outstanding with related parties

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances

(a) Sharcholders

(b} Entites under sharcholding
(c) Key management personnel

(d) Other related parues

Accrued interest income

(a) Sharcholders

(b) Entities under common control
(c) Key management personnel

(d) Other relared parties

Total

Deposits from customers

Term deposits
(a) Sharcholder
(c) Other related parues

Cucrent/demand accounts

(a) Sharcholders

(b) Enuues under common control
(¢} Key management personnel

(d) Other related parties

Accrued interest expense on term deposits

(a) Sharcholder
(b) Other related parnes

Total

2018 2017
AZN AZN
6,476 5,037

. 4,106
130 14
494 595
7,100 10,652
18 30
1 23
2 1
21 54
7,121 10,706
2018 2017
AZN AZN
130,373 37,143
55,253 38,978
185,626 76,121
15,232 6,093
640 867
74 40
7,719 6,341
23,665 13341
277 255
168 68
445 323
209,736 89,785
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23 Related parties {continued)

23.2 Amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income

Interest income

{a) Sharcholders
{b) Entites under common control
{c) Key management persennel

{d) Other relared parues

Interest expense

{a) Sharcholder
() Key management personnel
{c) Other related parues

Compensation to key management personnel

Compensation to key management personnel

Fees and commission income on settlements
Fees and commission income on scttlements
Guarantees issued on behalf of related parties

Enuty under common control

Operating expense - Advertisement expenses

Sharcholder

41

2018 2017
AZN AZN
621 730
a8 100

3 8

44 42
726 880
2018 2017
AZN AZN
5,519 2251
177 -
2,380 484
8,076 2,735
2018 2017
AZN AZN
460 451
817 80K
3,967 1,864
8,344 11,774
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(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC)
Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(in thousands of Azerbagan Manats)

24 Contingencies and commitments

In the nommal course of business the Bank 1s party to finaneial instruments with off-balance sheet sk in
order to meet the need of its customers. These nstruments, involving varying degrees of credit nisk, are
not reflected mn the statement of financial positon.

The Bank uses the same credit control and management policies in under taking off-balance sheet
conungent habilities and commitments as it does for on-balance sheet operations.

2018 2017

AZN AZN

Guarantees 1ssued on behalf of customer 108,945 78,482
Credit ines 41,788 264,214

At the reportng date, the Bank has no major capital commitments (2018: Nil).
Operating environment

Emerging markets such as Azerbayjan are subject to different nsks than more developed markets,
including economie, political and social, and legal and legislatve nsks. As has happened in the past, actual
or percerved financial problems or an increase i the percerved nisks associared with investing in emerging
economies could adverscly affect the mvestment climate in Azerbatjan and the Azerbajjan's economy 1n
general,

Laws and regulations affecting businesses in Azerbaian continue to change rapidly. Tax, currency and
customs legislaton within Azerbaan are subject to varying mierpretauons, and other legal and fiscal
impediments contribute to the challenges faced by entiies currently operating 1n Azerbagjan. The future
cconomic direction of Azerbayjan s largely dependent upon cconomic, fiscal and monetary measures
undertaken by the government, together with legal, regulatory, and political developments. There has been
major devaluanon in Azerbaan Manats agamst US dollars since February 21, 2015, The povernment has
introduced a floaung exchange rate since December 21, 2013, which was previously pegged agmnst US dollars.
Furthermore, the Govr. remove the restriction on maximum and muntmum margn deviaton from regulator
cxchange rate dunng the year and now Bank can set their own exchange rate based on marker supply and
demand basts.

The global financial turmol that has negatvely affected Azerbajjan's financial and capital markets 1n 2009
and 2010 receded and Azerbatjan's cconomy returned to growth in 2011 and 2012. However significant
cconomic uncertaintics remain. Adverse changes arsing from systemic nisks in global financial systems,
including any ughtening of the credit environment or from dechine in the oil and gas prices could slow or
disrupt the Azerbaijan’s economy, adversely affect the Group's access to capial and cost of caputal for the
Group and, more generally, its business, results of operauons, financial condition and prospects. Because
\zerbayjan produces and exports large volumes of oil and gas, Azerbaijan’s economy 1s particularly
sensitve to the price of ol and gas on the world market which has fluctuated significantly during the year.

Legal proceedings
From time to ume and in the normal course of business, claims against the Bank are received from

customers and counterparties. Management 15 of the opinion that no matenal unaccrued losses will be
incurred and accoedingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.
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{1in thousands of Azerbayan Manarts)

24 Contingencies and commitments (continued}

Taxation

Commerctal legislason of the Republic of Azerbayan, meluding tax legslation, may allow more than one
mterpretation. in addiwon, there is a risk of tax authorties making arbitrary judgments of business
acuvities, If a treatment, based on management's judgment of the Bank's business acuvines, was to be
challenged by the tax authorities, the Bank may be assessed for additional taxes, penalttes and mrerest.

Such uncertainty may relate to the valuanon of financial instruments, valuauon of provision for
impairment losses and the market pricing of deals. Addwonally, such uncertainty may relate to the
valuaton of temporary differences on the provision and recovery of the provision for impairment losses
on loans and advances to customers and receivables, as an undercsumation of the taxable profit.

Generally, taxpayers are subject to tax audits with respect to three calendar years preceding the year of the
audit. Flowever, completed audits do not exclude the possibihty of subsequent additional tax audits
performed by upper-level tax inspectorates reviewing the results of tax audits of their subordinate tax
nspectorates.

24.1 Compliance with regulatory ratios

The Financial Market Supervisory Authority of the Republic of Azerbayjan require banks to maintain
certain prudental ratios computed based on statutory financal statements, As at 31 December 2018, the
Bank was in comphance with these rauos except for below ratio of:

) Maximum credit exposure of a bank per single borrower that should not esceed 7% of the
Bank's total capital when the market value of the collateral mn any other form of credit
exposures is less than 100% of such credit exposures, or the market value of real estate
collateral of loans 15 below 150% of the loan value. As at 31 December 2018, the Bank
exceeded the required lmis.

)  As at 31 December 2018 the Bank granted loans 10 3 costomers which exceeded 10% of the
Banks total capatal,



Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Silk Way Bank OJSC)
Financial Statements
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{in thousands of \zcrbagan Manats)

25 Capital adequacy and management

Capital management policies and procedures

Capiral management objectives are to ensure that there 1s sufficient capital 1o meet the capial
requirements of the Bank as determined by the underlying business sirategy and the minimum
requirements of the regulator. The capital management process 15 governed by the Supervisory Board.
The Supervisory Board s responsible for managing the Bank's capital positton in line with mrernal as well
as regulatory requirements.

The Supervisory Board also reviews the volume and mix of the Bank's assets, labilines and funding
sources in light of iquidity, capital, risk and profitability considerations.

The Bank's capital management seeks:
e to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators and comparable to the peers;
® to acuvely manage the supply of capital costs and increase capital veloety;

* to ncrease strategic and tacucal flexibiity i the deployment of capual to allow for the umely
reallocation of capital;

¢ to improve the iquidity of the Bank's assets to allow for an opumal deployment of the Bank's
resources;

¢ 1o protect the Bank against unexpected events and mamntain strong ratings;

e 1o safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern so that 1t can continue to provide
adequate return to shareholders;

e avalability of adequate capital (including the quantum) ar a reasonable cost 5o as to enable the Bank
1o expand; and

* o achieve low overall cost of eapital with appropriate mix of capital clements,
Capital adequacy ratio

Quanttative measures established by regulaton to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain
amounts and ratios of total and tier 1 capital 1o nsk weighted assets. The capital o nsk weighted assets
ratio was calculated in accordance with the gudelines 1ssued by regulator on capatal adequacy using the
principles employed by the Basel Committee by applying following nsk csumates to the assets and off-
balance sheet commitments net of allowances for impauwment losses.

2018 2017

AZN AZN

Total regulatory capital held 130,440 116,248

Tier 1 capital 103,963 104,338

Total risk weighted assets 832,913 808,734
Total regulatory capital rauo

{minumum requirement 10% (2017: 10%4)) 13.27% 13.24%

Tier 1 capital ratto (mimmum requirement 5% (2017: 5%0)) 10.01% 11.77%

M



Premium Bank Open Joint Stock Company
(Formerly: Open Joint Stock Venture Sitk Way Bank O]SC)
Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the ycar ended 31 December 2018
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26 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial position relate to the following categories of
assets and Iabilives:

Notes 2018 2017
Financial assets AZN AZN
Loans and receivables:
- Cash and balances with Central Bank 5 53,302 48,140
- Balances with other banks T 10,459 12,580
- Loans and advances to customers 8 552,127 393,630
- Other assets 3,600 4,010
Total 619,488 458,360
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortsed cost:
- Loans and deposits from banks and financial
instugons 11 40,810 109,951
- Deposits from customers 12 466,111 242055
- Other liabiliies 3,393 3,876
Taotal 510,314 355,882

27 Financial instrument risk
27.1 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an assct or pad to transfer a liabihry 1n an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Differences can therefore anse benween
the carrying values under the listonical cost method and fair value esumates. Underlying the definition of
fair value 15 a presumption that an enterprise 15 a going concern without any intention or need to
liquidate, curtail matenally the scale of its operations or undertake a transaction on adverse terms. s per
management's estumates far value of the Bank's financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in
the staternent of financial position 15 stated below:
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27 Financial instrument risk (continued)

27.1 Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)

2018 217

Carrying Fair Carrying Far

value value value value

Financial assets: AZN AZN AZN AZN

- Cash and balances with Central Bank 53,302 53,302 48,140 48,140

- Balances with other banks 10,459 10,459 12,580 12,580

- Loans and advances to customers 552,127 552,127 303,630 393,630

- Other assets 3,600 3,600 4,010 4,010

Total 619,488 619,488 458,360 458,360

Financial labilities:

- Loans and deposits from banks

and financial msttutions 40,810 40,810 109,951 109,951

- Deposits from customers 466,111 466,111 242,055 242,055

- Other habihaes 3,393 3,393 3 876 3,876

Total 510,314 510,314 355,882 355,882

Sufficient financial assets are avalable to meet the finanaal hiabiliues.

Asscts and babilities in the statement of financial position measured at fair value are grouped into three
levels of fair value hierarchy. This grouping is determined based on the lowest level of significant inputs

used in fair value measurement, as follows:

e Level 1: quoted prces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts or labulities.

¢ Level 2: inpurs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, esther directly (1.e. as prices) or indircetly (1.e. derived from prices).

® Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ebservable market data (unobservable

inputs).

_.‘.{’
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27 Financial instrument risk (continued)
27.1 Fair value measurement of financial instruments {continued)

The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of financial assets and liabiliies as at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2018 AZN AZN AZN AZN
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed:
- Cash and balances with Central
Bank - - 53,302 53,302
- Balances with other banks - - 10,459 10,459
- Loans and advances to
customers - - 552,127 552,127
- Other assets - - 3,600 3,600
Liabihities for which fair values are
disclosed:
- Loans and deposits from banks } [ 40.810
and financial institutions 40,810 !
- Depostts from customets - - 466,111 466,111
- Other habilities o o 3,393 3,393
31 December 2017
Assers for which fair values are
disclosed:
- Cash and balances with Central
Bank - - 48,140 48,140
- Balances with other banks - - 12,580 12,580
- Loans and advances to
customers - - 393,630 393,630
- Other assets - - 4,010 4,010
Liabilittes for which fair values are
disclosed:
- Loans and deposits from banks
and finanecial instrutons - - 109,951 109,951
- Deposits from customers - - 242053 242,055
- Other habilittes - - 3,876 3,876

7
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27 Financial instrument risk {continued)
27.2 Risk management objectives and policies

The Bank's business involves taking on risks 1n a targeted manner and managing them professionally. The
core funcrons of the Bank's nsk management are to idenafy all key risks for the Bank, measure these
nisks, manage the nsk positions and determine capital allocavons. The Bank regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems 1o reflect changes 1n markets, products and best market practice.

The Bank's am is to achieve an appropriate balance between sk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on the Bank's financial performance.

The Bank defines nsk as the possibility of losses or profits foregone, which may be caused by internal or
external factors.

The Bank's risk management 1s coordinated at 1ts head office, m close cooperation with the Supervisory
Board. The Supervisory Board provides wrtten principles for overall nsk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate nisk, credit risk and use of non-
denvative financial instruments.

The Bank is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The Bank's financial assets and
liabiliies by category are summarised in note 26. The main types of rsks are market nsk, credit sk,
liquidity nisk and operational risk.

Market risk

Market nisk 1s the sk that market prices and rates can change and this can have an adverse cffect on
profitability and/or capital. The Bank is cxposed to number of market nisks relating to its daily
operations, arsing from open positions in interest rates and currency, all of which are exposed to general
and specific market movements. For the purpose of market nisk, management identfies 1ts main market
nsk factors as cquity position nisk, interest rate nsk and foreign currency nisk. The predominant market
nisk 15 foreign currency nsk and mterest rate nsk. The Bank 1s not exposed significantly to equity position
risk as 1t has no capital market operations.

The Bank, as a matter of policy, secks to idenufy, measure, monitor and control market risks in order to
protect against adverse movement in market prices and rates and to optimize the nsk / return profile of
its open positions. The Supervisory Board mainly oversees development and implementation of market
rsk policy and nsk measunng / monitoring methodology and review and reporung of market risks
against limits.

Foreign currency risk

Forewgn currency risk 1s the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial mstrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Foreign exchange risk 1s the nsk thar the carnings and/or capital will fluctuate due to changes n foreign
exchange rates. The Bank's foreign exchange exposure consists of foreign currency cash on hand,
balances with other banks, loans and advances to customers, loans and deposits from banks and financial
institutions and deposits from customers.
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27 Financial instrument risk {(continued)
27.2 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

The Bank manages 1ts foreign exchange exposures by matching foreign currency assets and habilies. Net
open position and counterparty lmits have been estabbshed to it risk concenrraton.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabihties which expose the Bank to currency nisk are
disclosed below. The amounts shown are those reported to key management personnel translated nto
AZN at the closing rate:

Foreign currency exposure

USD EUR Other Total

31 December 2018 AZN AZN AZN AZN
- Finanaial assets 424,514 40,775 3,158 468,447

- Financial liabilities (412,660) (37,335) (3,673) {453,668)
Toral exposure — net 11,854 3,440 {515) 14,779

Formgn CULTCNncy cxposuse

UsD EUR Other Total

31 December 2017 AZN AZN AZM AZN
- [Financial assets 277,40 20,842 2,264 300,146
- FFinancial habihves (269,828) (20,717) (2,267) (292,812)
Toral exposure — net 7,212 125 (3 7,334

The following table illustrates the sensiuviry of profit/ (loss) before tax and equity in regard to the Bank's
financial asscts and financial habilities and the USD/AZN exchange rate and EUR/AZN exchange rate
all other things being equal’. It assumes a #10% change of the USD/AZN exchange rate for the year
ended at 31 December 2018 (2017: +£10%). A £10% change 1s considered for the EUR/AZN exchange
rate (2017; £10°4). The sensiovity analysis 1s based on the Bank's foreign currency financial instruments
held at each reporung date.

If the AZN had weakened against the USD by 10P0 (2017: 10%) and EUR by 10% (2017: 10%)
respectively then this would have had the following impact:

Profit/ (loss) before tax Equity
USD EUR Others usD EUR  Others
AZN AZN AZN AZN AZN AZN
31 December 2018 1,185 344 (52) 948 275 @1)
31 December 2017 721 13 &) 577 10 @)
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27 Financial instrument risk {(continued)
27.2 Risk management objectives and policies {continued)

If the AZN had strengthened against the USD by 10% (2017: 10°0) and EUR by 10% (2017: 10%%)
respectively then this would have had the following impact:

Profit/ (loss) before tax Equity
UsD EUR Other UsD EUR  Ochers
AZN AZN AZN AZN AZN AZN
31 December 2018 (1,185) (344) 52 (948) (275) 41
31 December 2017 {721) (13) 2 (577 (10) 2

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary duning the year depending on the volume of overseas
trangactions. Nonetheless, the analysts above 1s considesed to be representauve of the Bank's exposure to
forewgn currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate oisk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk 1s the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate becawse of changes in market interese rates.

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations n the prevailing levels of market interest rates
on both its fair value and cash flow sks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but
may reduce losses in the event that unexpected movements anse. The Supervisory Board sets limits on
the level of mismateh of interest rate re-pncing and value at osk that may be undertaken, which 1s
monitored daily by Risk Management Specialst.

The table on below page tustrates the sensiuvity of profit/(loss) before tax and equity to a reasonably
possible change n interest rates of £1% (2017; £1%). These changes are considered to be reasonably
possible based on observation of current market conditions. The caleulations are based on a change 1n the
average market mferest rate for each peried, and the interest-beanng financial mstrumeats held at each
reporting date that are sensitive 1o changes in interest rates, Al other varables are held constant.

Profit/(loss) before tax Equity
AZN AZN AZN AZN
December 31, 2018 +1% 1% +1% 10
Financial assets:
- Loans and advances to customers 5,521 (5,521) 4,443 (4,443)
Financial habilines:
- Loans and deposits from banks
and financial insututions (408) 408 (326) 326
- Deposits from customers (3,472) 3,472 (2,778) 2,778
1,641 (1,641) 1,339 (1,339}
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27 Financial instrument risk {continued)
27.2 Risk management objectives and policies {continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Profit/ (loss) befote tax Equity
AZN AZN AZN AZN
December 31, 2017 +1%% 1% +1"%a LA
Fiancial assets:
- Loans and advances to customets 3,936 {3,936) 3,140 (3,149
Financial habihines:
- Loans and deposits from banks
and financial msatutions (1,100 1,100 (B8O} BBO
- Deposits from customers {(1,618) 1,618 (1,295 1,295
1,218 {(1,218) 974 (974
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27 Financial instrument risk {continued)
27.2 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk

Credit sk is the nsk that arses from the potential that an obligor 15 either unwilling to perform an
oblgation or its ability to perform such obligation 15 impaired resulting in economic loss to the Bank. The
Bank attempts to control credit nisk by momtoring credit exposures, hmiting transactions with specific
counter parties and contnually assesstng the creditworthiness of counter parties.

The focus of the Bank's commercial lending continues to be short-term trade related financing on a
secured and sclf bqudatng basis. The Bank will also conunue 1ts emphasis on diverstficaton of its assets
to avert large single industry or group exposure. A significant portion of loans is extended to related
parties and the management considered minimal credit nsk for these financing,

The Bank has bwlt and maintained a sound loan portfolio 1n terms of a well defined credit policy. The
Bank's credit evaluation system comprises of well-designed credit apprasal, sanctoning and review
procedures for the purpose of emphasizing prudence 1n 11s lending activities and ensuring quality of assct
portfolio. Special attention 1s paid to the management of non-performing loans. .\ "watch list” procedure
15 also functoning wiich identifies loans showing carly warning signals of becoming non-performing.

The Bank 1s further diversifying 1ts asset portfolio by offering, Consumer Banking Products (Personal
Finance, Business Finance, Mortgage Finance and Auto Financing cte) to its customers, as it provides
better margins than tradinonal business lending opportunuties, whilse spreading the risk over a large
number of individual customers.

The Bank has devcloped an internal raong model, which allows it to determine the ratng of
counterparties. The rating of corporate borrowers s based on an analysts of the financial ratios of the
borrower, and an analysis of the market and industry sector, in which the borrower operates. The model
also takes nto consideration varous qualitatve factors, such as management cfficiency and borrower's
market share

The applicaton of the internal raung model results 1n a standardized approach in the analysis of corporate
borrowers and provides a quantitauve assessment of the creditworthiness of a borrower that does not
have a mting from an international raung agency. The model takes into account specific local market
conditions.

The quality of the mnternal raung model 15 cxamined on a regular basis through an assessment of both 1ts
effecuveness and validity. The Bank revises the model when deficiencies are idenufied.

The Bank applies internal ranng methodologies to specific corporate loans and groups of retail and small
bustness loans, which incorporate varous underlying master scales thar are different from thosc used by
mternational raung agencies. As a result, 1t 15 not possible o make a cross-product score comparnson
which would agree to the outstanding balance of loans 1o customers per the statement of financial
postion. .\s such, more detatled information 1s not being presented

The banking industry 1s generally exposed to credit nisk through its financial assets and contingent
labiltties. ‘The credit nsk exposure of the Bank is concentrated within the Azerbayan Republic. The
exposure 15 monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the credit hmits and credst worthiness guidelines
established by the Bank's risk management policy are not breached.
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27 Financial instrument risk (continued)
27.2 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk {continued)

The following table details the gross carrying value of financial assets and those that are impared:

Net
carrying
Gross value Impaired value
31 December 2018 AZN AZN AZN
IFinancial assets:
- Cash and balances with Central Bank 53,302 - 53,302
- Balances with other banks 10,585 (126} 10,459
- Loans and advances to customers 586,479 {34,352) 552,127
- Other assets 3,600 - 3,600
653,840 (34,352) 619,488
31 December 2017
Financial assets:
- Cash and balances with Central Bank 48,140 o 48,140
- Balances with other banks 12,707 (127) 12,580
- Loans and advances to customers 429,675 {36,045) 393,630
- Other assets 4,010 - 4,010
494,532 (36,172) 458,360

Net exposure of credit risk

The Banks net exposurc to credit risk varies significantly and 15 dependent on both individual risks and
general market economy risks.

The following table presents the net exposure to credit nsk of on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet
financial assets. For financial assets in the statement of financial position, the net exposure is equal to the
carrying amount of those assets prior to any collateral. The Bank’s net exposure to credit nisk under
conungent labihies and commitments to extend credit, in the event of non-performance by the other
party where all counterclums, collateral or sceurity prove valueless, 15 represented by the contractual
amounts of those instruments.
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27 Financial instrument risk {continued)
27.2 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk {continued)

Net exposure of credit risk (continued)

Gross
Net collateral Net
exposure pledged expostre
AZN AZN AZN
31 December 2018
Cash and balances wath Central Bank 53,302 - 53,302
Balances with other banks 10,459 - 10,459
Loans and advances to customers 552,127 (135,804) 416,323
Other asscts 3,600 - 3,600
Financial guarantees extended on behalf of customers 108,945 - -
Credit ltnes 41788 - -
Gross
Net collateral Net
exposure pledged exposute
AZN AZN AZN
31 December 2017
Cash and balances with Central Bank 48,140 - 48,140
Balances with other banks 12,580 - 12,580
Loans and advances to customers 393,630 (202,209 191,421
Cither assets 4,010 - 4,010
Financial guarantees extended on behalf of customers 78,482 - 78,482
Credir lines 264214 - 264,214
Off-balance sheet risk

The Bank applies fundamentally the same nsk management policies for off-balance sheet risks as 1t does
for its on-balance sheet nisks. In the case of commitments to lend, customers and counterparties will be
subject to the same credit management policies as for loans and advances. Collateral may be sought
depending on the strength of the counterparty and the nature of the transaction
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27 Financial instrument risk (continued)
27.2 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk {continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages, hmits and controls concentrations of credit risk whercever they are idenufied = in
particular, to individual counterparties and groups, and to industries and countrics. The Bank structures
the levels of credit nisk 1t undertakes by placing imits on the amount of sk accepted in relation to one
borrower, or groups of borrowers, and industry segments. Such nsks are monitored on a revolving basis
and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when constdered necessary. Limits on the level of
credit risk by product, industry sector are approved by the Board of Directors. Actual exposurcs against
limits are monitored regularly. Lending limits are reviewed in the bght of changing market and economic
condiions and periodic credit reviews and assessments of probability of default. Some other specific
control and miugation measures are outlined below:

Collateral

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the
counterparty. Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptabiity of types of collateral and valuatuon
parameters. The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

o For commeraal lending, charges over real estate propertics, moveable assets, deposits and
guarantees; and

o For retail lending, mortgages over residental propertics and moveable assets.

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests addinonal collateral in accordance with the
underlying agreement, and monitors the marker value of collateral obtuned during us review of the
adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses.

Lending limits

The Bank maiatains strict control imits over us lending to customers. This credit nsk exposure 1s
managed as part of the overall lending hmats with customers and is approved by the Credit Commuittee
and ulumately by the Supervisory Board of the Bank. Collateral or other secunty is not always obtained
for credit nisk exposures on loans 1o customers and therefore the Bank is exposed to settlement risk on
the uncollateralized portion of the loans.

Financial covenants (for credit related commitments)

The pnmary purpose of these instruments is 1o ensure that funds are available to a customer as required.
Guarantees carry the same credit risk as loans. Commitments to extend credit represent unused poruons
of authorsatons to extend credit in the form of loans or guarantees. With respect to credit sk on
commitments to extend credit, the Bank 15 potentally exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total
unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss 15 less than the total unused commnments, as
most commitments (o extend credit are contingent upon customers mamtuning specific credit standards
(often referred to as financial covenants).

The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments
generally have a greater degree of credu sk than shorter-term commitments.,
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27 Financial instrument risk (continued)
27.2 Risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Operational risk

The Bank's operational nisk is related to possible losses which may be incurred as a result of fatlures
occursing in the Bank's day-to-day operations, such as breakdown in electronic and teleccommunication,
rouiines or other systems - addinonal factors being nsufficient levels of professional skdls or human
crrors. In order to keep the Bank's operatonal osks to a minimum level, various tools arc used to manage
operatonal risk using a common categornizauon of nsk.

The Bank's approach to operational sk 1s not designed to climinate nsk, rather, to contan it within the
acceptable levels, as deternmined by senor management, and 1o ensure that they have sufficient
itformanon to make informed decisions about additional controls, adjustments to controls, or other risk
[CSPONSEs.

28 Concentration of financial instruments
The majority of concentration of financial assers and liabilines related 10 banking activities 1s within the

boundaries of Azerbatjan Republic. The following is the detail of geographical concentraton of financial
instruments:

Azerbaijan CIS Other
Republic countries countries Total
31 December 2018 AZN AZN AZN AZN
Financial assets:
- Cash and balances with Central Bank 53,302 - - 53,302
- Balances with other banks 523 2,290 7,646 10,459
- Loans and advances to customers 552,127 - - 552,127
- Other asscts 3,600 - - 3,600
609,552 2200 7646 619488
Financial habilites:
- Loans and deposits from banks and
financial insu'fuu'ons 40,810 i E 40830
- Depostits from customers 466,111 - - 466,111
- Other habilines 3,393 - - 3,393
510,314 - - 510,314
Net gap 102,488 2,290 7,646 112,424
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28 Concentration of financial instruments {continued)
Azerbaijan CIS Other
Republic countries countries Total
31 December 2017 AZN AZN AZN AZN
Financial assets:
- Cash and balances with Central Bank 48,140 - - 48,140
- Balances with other banks 2,962 330 9,082 12,58()
- Loans and advances 10 customers 393,630 - - 393,630
- Other assets 4,010 - - 4,010
418,742 336 9,082 458,360

[Ftnancial labilives:

- Loans and deposits from banks and

financial instrutions 109,951 - - 109,951
- Deposits from customers 242,055 - - 242,055
- Other liabilities 3,870 - - 3.876
355,882 - - 355,882
Net gap 92,860 536 9082 102,478
29 Earnings per share
2018 2017
Net profi for the year attributable to the owners of the Bank — AZN 000 12,683 1,399
Weighted average number of ordmnary shares for the purpose of
basic and diluted earnings per share 679 679
Larnings per share - basic and diluted (manat) 18.68 2.35
30 Post-reporting date events

Subsequent to the year end, the President of Azerbayan issued a decree to compensate the banks 1n
relaton to foreign currency loans because of devaluation of local currency on February 21, 2015 and
December 21, 2015. The effect of this 1s immatenial on the Bank’s financial statements.
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